

0764

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Sandford, Louis

DATE:

11/18/85



1982

0765

178

Counsel, *A. J. [unclear]*
Filed *11* day of *Nov* 188*8*
Pleads *Not Guilty*

[Sections 528, 532, Penal Code.]

THE PEOPLE
Wm. [unclear]
vs.
Wm. [unclear]
Somers & Sandford

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
Dr. Wm. [unclear] District Attorney.
Med. Records - So.
A True Bill. *Sec. 4*

L. Carter Jr.
Foreman
14th Dec 1888
[Signature]

Witnesses:
Wm. [unclear]
[Signature]
Thos. [unclear]
Wm. [unclear]

0766

Police Court— 22 District.

Affidavit—Larceny.

City and County }
of New York, } ss.:

Herman Meistertzheim

of No. 41 Grand Street, aged 49 years,
occupation Walter

deposes and says, that on the 22^d day of October 1887 at the City of New

York, in the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen and carried away from the possession

of deponent, in the Night time, the following property viz :

Grand lawful money to the amount
and of the value of twenty five dollars

the property of deponent

Sworn to before me, this
of October
1887
day

W. G. B. S. M.

Police Justice.

and that this deponent
has a probable cause to suspect, and does suspect, that the said property was feloniously taken, stolen,
and carried away by Louis Sandford from the fact
that said defendant did by means of tricks
and artifices obtain from deponent said
amount of money by paying that he wanted
said amount of money as security to obtain
for him a situation as Cashier. Deponent
further says that said defendant never
had a situation and did not get a
situation for deponent as he promised
to do.

Deponent further says that the
defendant received said money from
deponent with the felonious intent to
convert the same to his own use
and he asks that he be arrested and dealt
with according to Law, Herman Meistertzheim

0767

Police Court, 2d District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
on the complaint of

Sherman Meisterzheim

Louis Sandford

Offence—LARCENY.

2
3
4

Dated *April 10* 188*5*

W. J. Power Magistrate.

Evans Officer.

Clerk.

Witnesses, _____

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street,

No. _____ Street,

\$ _____ to answer _____ Sessions.

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named

guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of
Hundred Dollars *and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison*
of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated _____ 188 _____

I have admitted the above named *Police Justice.*

to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 _____

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named *Police Justice.*

guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____

..... *Police Justice.*

0768

POLICE COURT 2 DISTRICT.

City and County of New York, ss.:

THE PEOPLE,

On Complaint of Herman Mistergerkin
For Petit Larceny

vs.
Louis Sandford

After being informed of my rights under the law, I hereby ^{demand} waive a trial, by Jury, on this complaint, and demand a trial at the COURT OF ~~SPECIAL~~ SESSIONS OF THE PEACE, to be holden in and for the City and County of New York.

Dated Nov 13th 1888

Louis Sandford

[Signature] Police Justice.

0769

Sec. 198-200.

District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, ss

Louis Sandford being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question What is your name?

Answer *Louis Sandford*

Question How old are you?

Answer *37 years old*

Question Where were you born?

Answer *New York City*

Question Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer *12 Varick Place. 4 weeks*

Question What is your business or profession?

Answer *Cook & Concoct*

Question Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer.

I am not guilty
Louis Sandford

Taken before me this

day of *Nov* 188*8*

Seipman

Police Justice.

0770

Sec. 151.

24 District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, }^{ss} *In the name of the People of the State of New York; To the Sheriff of the County of New York, or any Marshal or Policeman of the City of New York:*

Whereas, Complaint on oath, has been made before me, undersigned, one of the Police Justices in and for the said City, by Herman Meistertzheim

of No. 41 Grand Street, that on the 22^d day of November 1885 at the City of New York, in the County of New York, the following article to wit :

Good and lawful money

of the value of twenty five Dollars,

the property of Complainant was taken, stolen, and carried away, and as the said complainant has cause to suspect, and does suspect and believe, by Louis Sanford

Wherefore, the said Complainant has prayed that the said Defendant may be apprehended and bound to answer the said complaint.

These are, Therefore, in the name of the PEOPLE of the State of New York, to command you the said Sheriff, Marshals and Policemen, and every of you, to apprehend the body of the said Defendant and forthwith bring him before me, at the 24 DISTRICT POLICE COURT, in the said City, or in case of my absence or inability to act, before the nearest or most accessible Police Justice in this City, to answer the said charge, and to be dealt with according to law.

Dated at the City of New York, this 10th day of November 1885

[Signature] POLICE JUSTICE.

0771

POLICE COURT. DISTRICT.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Herman Meisterzheim

vs.

Louis Sandford

Warrant-Larceny.

REMARKS.

Time of Arrest, *November 18 '88*

Native of *U.S.*

Age, *27*

Sex

Complexion,

Color, *Light Blue*

Profession, *Clerk*

Married *No*

Single,

Read, *Yes*

Write, *Yes*

12 Varreck St.

Dated *November 10* 188*8*

Power Magistrate

Evans Officer

Louis Sandford

The Defendant

taken, and brought before the Magistrate, to answer
within charge, pursuant to the command con-
tained in this Warrant.

Isaac Evans Officer.

Dated _____ 188

This Warrant may be executed on Sunday or at
night.

W. J. Tomlin

Police Justice.

0772

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named Alfred A. [unclear]

Alfred A. [unclear] guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of Five Hundred Dollars of the City of New York, until he give such bail. and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison

Dated Nov 13 1889

Alfred A. [unclear] Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 .

Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 .

Police Justice.

0773

\$500 for Ag's
9²⁰ AM.
Nov 14

BAILED,

No. 1, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 2, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

Police Court-- 21241 District.

THE PEOPLE, &c,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Henry Mustertzhin
41 Grand
Louis Sandford

Office Petah & ...

Dated Nov 13th 1885
M. J. Power Magistrate.
Evans Officer.
249C. Court Precinct.

Witnesses R. H. McGinley
No. 245-N. 25th Street.

No. _____ Street.
No. _____ Street.

No. 500 to answer
\$ General Sessions
L. M. M.

0775

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,

against

Samuel Sandford

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Samuel Sandford

of the CRIME OF PETIT LARCENY, committed as follows:

The said *Samuel Sandford*

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the *Twenty second* day of *October*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-*five*, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms,

a sum of money to wit: One
sum of Twenty five dollars
in money lawful money of
the United States, and of the
value of Twenty five dollars,

of the goods, chattels and personal property of one *Samuel*

Winsted Jones.

then and there being found, then and there unlawfully did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

Randolph Martin
District Attorney

0776

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Sargeant, Charles V.

DATE:

11/05/85



1982

0777

27 Dec 1885

W. H. Mallory

Counsel,

Filed 5 day of Nov 1885

Pleas: 4/10/161

THE PEOPLE

vs.

P

Charles V. Saenger

Grand Larceny 1st degree

[Sections 528, 58 0, Penal Code.]

Conced by Court. 11/22/85

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

Dec 4/85 District Attorney.

Wm. G. Zuley

A TRUE BILL.

S.P. 5 of Jan.

Dec 4/85

Foreman.

J. C. Carter Jr.

Witnesses:

Mary Smith

Aug. 17/85

0778

Court of General Sessions of the Peace,
Of the City and County of New York.

The People of the State of New York)

against)

Charles V. Sargeant.)

) -----
City and County of New York, SS.)

Mary Smith, being duly sworn deposes and says:-

That she resides at number 9 Battery Place in the City of New York. On the 3d. day of October, 1885, the above named defendant stole from her the following articles:-
One trunk; of the value of twenty dollars; fifty yards of silk of the value of two dollars a yard; two bracelets of the value of one hundred dollars each; one chain of the value of sixty dollars; two locketts of the value of fifty dollars each and ninety-five dollars in money, all the property of the deponent. Deponent states that the articles were taken from her under the following circumstances:-
On the aforesaid day the defendant came to deponent's house and told her that he was informed that her husband had left her and in consequence of his being in debt had ran away. He further stated that he was a detective and that he was desirous of protecting deponent and inasmuch as the United States Marshal's were going to attach her own individual property to pay her husband's debt, he therefore advised deponent the best thing she could do to let him take the above mentioned property and store it for her. Deponent fearing that her individual property might be taken as indicated by the defendant at that time, and having no reas-

0779

sons to distrust defendant's statements, he having been a guest at the house off and on for three months prior to said date, allowed him to take the aforesaid property to the Western Union hotel at the corner of Courtland and West streets this city. Subsequent to the above mentioned date and after the goods had been taken from the possession of the deponent, the defendant gave deponent a written order which he stated would allow deponent to go to said Western Union hotel and obtain any of the articles which had been removed there. Deponent further states that she went to said Western Union hotel with the written order, and the landlord there refused to allow her to see any of the articles. Finding that I could not get at my property and suspecting that something was wrong I reported the case to the police. After I reported the case to the police in company with detective sergeant James McGuire of the Central Office, I went to the said Western Union hotel, and was given permission to look into the room which the defendant had occupied and to which the defendant had taken the said trunks. In said room I saw four of my trunks which had been taken away by the defendant, all of which had been broken open and the contents thereof thrown around the floor, except such, as I am informed and believe had been previously sold to the landlord of said hotel by the said defendant. A trunk and satchel containing the most valuable of my property were missing. I am informed by detective sergeant William E. Frink, that he was specially detailed upon the case of the above named defendant, and for

0780

the purpose of investigating the same, went to Philadelphia on or about the 30th. day of October, 1885. That on said date the said defendant was arrested by the authorities in Philadelphia and is now held there awaiting requisition from the Governor of the State of New York, upon the charge set out in the accompanying indictment; That he saw and spoke with the said defendant, who at that time confessed to him that he had stolen the ~~said~~ property and that a portion of it was in a trunk at his then place of residence, 305 Callow Hill street, Philadelphia, and that if he, Frink, would go there, he would find defendant's wife who would deliver up to him the said goods. Then he Frink, went to said place and received from the wife of defendant the trunk and its contents, all of which he brought to the police headquarters in the city of New York, where deponent has seen them and identified them as her own property, which she had given to the said defendant under the circumstances set forth above.

Deponent further states that she does not know of her own knowledge whether or not the defendant at the time of the commission of the offense charged in the indictment was or was not a resident of this State, but she knows that she has often seen him in the City of New York, he having been a guest at her house. Deponent further states that this application is made in good faith for the sole purpose of punishing the accused and that there is no desire or expectation of using the prosecution for the purpose of col-

0781

lecting any debt or for any private purpose nor will it be
directly or indirectly used for any of said purposes.

Sworn to before me this
9 day of November, 1885.

Mary K. Smith

Wm M. Davis.

Notary Public, N. Y. C.

0782

City and County of New York, SS.

WILLIAM E. FRINK, being duly sworn, deposes and says as follows:- I am a Detective Sergeant attached to the central office of the police department of the City of New York. On or about the 30th. day of October I was specially detailed upon the case against the above named defendant. Having heard that he had left the city of New York and had gone to Philadelphia, I went to the last named place, and upon my request to the Chief of Police in said city, the said defendant was arrested, and is now held there to await requisition from the Governor of the State of New York upon the charge set forth in the accompanying indictment. I further state that in conversation with the said defendant he admitted to me that he had stolen the articles set forth in the indictment herein, and that they could be found at his present place of residence number 305 Callow Hill street Philadelphia, at which place his wife would deliver them to me. I went to the said place and there I received from the wife of the defendant a trunk and its contents, which I subsequently brought on to New York, and deposited in the police headquarters, where Mary K. Smith the complainant in this action identified the said trunk and its contents as her property and the same which she had given to the above named defendant on said third day of October, 1885.

Sworn to before me this

4th day of November, 1885.

Wm M. Davis,

Notary Public, N.Y.C.

W. E. Frink

Det. Sgt. N.Y.C.

0783

Sec. 151.

Third District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss

In the name of the People of the State of New York; To the Sheriff of the County of New York, or any Marshal or Policeman of the City of New York:

Whereas, Complaint on oath, has been made before the undersigned, one of the Police Justices in and for the said City, by Mary Smith

of No. 9 Battery Place Street, that on the 31st day of October

1886 at the City of New York, in the County of New York, the following article to wit:

Some valuable money of the United States consisting of
about 2000 notes and bills of various denominations and value
the value of the same of \$9000.00 and some gold and silver
bracelets one gold chain and two gold earrings in all together
to the value of Five hundred Dollars,

the property of John J. Bennett
was taken, stolen, and carried away, and as the said complainant has cause to suspect, and does suspect and believe, by Charles J. DeGraaf

Wherefore, the said Complainant has prayed that the said Defendant may be apprehended and bound to answer the said complaint.

These are, Therefore, in the name of the PEOPLE of the State of New York, to command you the said Sheriff, Marshals and Policemen, and every of you, to apprehend the body of the said Defendant and forthwith bring him before me, at the 10th DISTRICT POLICE COURT, in the said City, or in case of my absence or inability to act, before the nearest or most accessible Police Justice in this City, to answer the said charge, and to be dealt with according to law.

Dated at the City of New York, this 30th day of October 1886
W. J. Duffy POLICE JUSTICE.

0784

POLICE COURT. DISTRICT.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Mary Smith

Charles T. Sargent

Warrant-Larceny.

Dated *Oct 30th* 188*5*

W. J. Duffey Magistrate

Frank McQuinn *James McQuinn* Officers

The Defendant

taken, and brought before the Magistrate, to answer the within charge, pursuant to the command contained in this Warrant.

Frank McQuinn *James McQuinn* Officers

Dated *Oct 30* 188*5*

This Warrant may be executed on Sunday or at night.

P. J. Duffey Police Justice.

REMARKS.

Time of Arrest, *Oct 30/85*

Native of

Age,

Sex *Male*

Complexion, *fair*

Color *white*

Profession, *N. S. Ward Detective*

Married *no*

Single, *yes*

Read, *yes*

Write, *yes*

0785

Police Court First District.

Affidavit—Larceny.

City and County }
of New York, } ss.:

of No. 9 Battery Place Street, aged 36 years,
occupation Housekeeper being duly sworn
deposes and says, that on the 3d day of October 1885 at the City of New
York, in the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen and carried away from the possession
of deponent, in the day time, the following property viz :

One trunk containing
fifty yards of silk one pair gold bracelets
one gold neck chain and two gold sockets
and gold and lawful money of the United
States consisting of bank notes and bills
of divers denominations and values and being
together of the value of twenty five
dollars and being in all together of the
value of one hundred dollars.

the property of

Deponent.

and that this deponent

has a probable cause to suspect, and does suspect, that the said property was feloniously taken, stolen,
and carried away by Charles J. Sergeant, for the reason
that on the aforesaid day said Sergeant
came to said premises and said deponent
he was informed her husband had left
her and in consequence of his being in
debt had run away and that he represented
to deponent that he was a detective and he
would protect deponent and that the United
States marshalls were going to attack her
property and that the best thing she could
do would be to let him take her said
property to a hotel to protect it from said
marshalls deponent believing the
said representations to be true gave
deponent the aforesaid property to take

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3d day of October 1885
Police Justice

0786

To the Western Union Road Corner of Courtland
and Chest Street and the defendant went to
said store and the said property was
not there and the said defendant could
not be found

Defendant believing the representations
made by said defendant to be true parted
with the said property defendant therefore
charges said defendant with having
taken stolen and carried away said
property

Sworn to before me
this 30th day of Nov 1885 } Mary Smith.

[Signature]

[Signature]

Dated 1885 Police Justice

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named
guilty of the offence mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated 1885 Police Justice

I have admitted the above named
to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated 1885 Police Justice

of the City of New York, until he give such bail.
Hundred Dollars and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison
guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been
committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named

W 1202 # 13 # 19
Police Court, District,

THE PEOPLE, vs
on the complaint of
Mary Smith
Robert Remy
Charles J. [Signature]

Offence - LARCENY
Dated Oct 30th 1885
Magistrate
Ann M. [Signature] Magistrate Officer.

Witnesses, Clerk, Street, Street, Street, Sessions.
\$ to answer



0787

State of New York.

Executive Chamber.

ALBANY, *Jan. 17* 188*7*

SIR:

An application for Executive clemency having been made on behalf of *Charles V. Sargeant*, who was convicted of *Grand Larceny, 2nd degree* in the County of *N.Y.*, and sentenced *Dec. 4* 188*5*, to imprisonment in the *City Jail Prison* for the term of *5* years and *0* months and to pay a fine of \$ *0*, I am directed by the Governor respectfully to request that, in pursuance of Section 695 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, as amended in 1884, you will forward to him a concise statement of the facts and circumstances developed upon the trial or upon the preliminary examination, or before the Coroner's jury, if no trial was had, together with your opinion of the merits of the application. Will you also inform the Governor of any other matters having a bearing upon this case which have come to your knowledge since the conviction.

It is particularly requested that each letter of inquiry from the Executive Chamber should be separately answered.

I am,

Very respectfully yours,

William J. McE
Private Secretary.

To Hon. *B. B. Martine,*

Dist. Atty. of New York Co.,
N. Y. City.

0788

Answered
Jan. 31st / 84
R. B. Lu.

0789

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,

against

Charles J. Saragant

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment accuse

Charles J. Saragant of the crime of GRAND LARCENY, in the first degree, committed as follows:

The said Charles J. Saragant,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York, aforesaid, on the 21st day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-

three promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of one thousand dollars, and of the value of one thousand dollars each: three promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of five hundred dollars, and of the value of five hundred dollars each: twenty promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of one hundred dollars, and of the value of one hundred dollars each: thirty promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of fifty dollars, and of the value of fifty dollars each: fifty promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of twenty dollars, and of the value of twenty dollars each: sixty promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of ten dollars, and of the value of ten dollars each: eighty promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of five dollars, and of the value of five dollars each: ninety promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of three dollars, and of the value of three dollars each: one hundred promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of two dollars, and of the value of two dollars each: one hundred and twenty promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of one dollar, and of the value of one dollar each: one promissory note for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of one hundred dollars: one promissory note for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of fifty dollars: two promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of twenty dollars each: three promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of ten dollars each: ten promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of five dollars each: ten promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of three dollars each: fifteen promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of two dollars each: thirty promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of one dollar each: bank bills of banks to the jurors aforesaid unknown, and of a number and denomination to the jurors aforesaid unknown, of the value of one thousand dollars. Two gold coins (of the kind usually known as double eagles), of the value of twenty dollars each: three gold coins (of the kind usually known as eagles), of the value of ten dollars each: six gold coins (of the kind usually known as half eagles), of the value of five dollars each: fifteen gold coins (of the kind usually known as quarter eagles), of the value of two dollars and fifty cents each: ten gold coins (of the kind usually known as three dollar pieces), of the value of three dollars each: thirty gold coins (of the kind usually known as dollar pieces), of the value of one dollar each: gold coin of the denomination to the jurors unknown, and a more particular description whereof cannot be given, of the value of one thousand dollars. Sixty silver coins (of the kind usually known as dollars), of the value of one dollar each: sixty silver coins (of the kind usually known as half dollars), of the value of fifty cents each: one hundred and fifty silver coins (of the kind usually known as quarter dollars), of the value of twenty-five cents each: three hundred silver coins (of the kind usually called dimes), of the value of ten cents each: six hundred silver coins (of the kind usually known as half dimes), of the value of five cents each: one thousand silver coins (of the kind known as three cent pieces), of the value of three cents each: silver coin of a denomination to the jurors unknown, and a more particular description whereof cannot be given, of the value of fifty dollars. Three thousand coins (of the kind known as cents), of the value of one cent each: five hundred coins (of the kind known as two cents), of the value of two cents each,

one bundle of the value of twenty dollars, fifty yards of ribbon of the value of two dollars each yard, two trawlers of the value of one hundred dollars each, one chain of the value of sixty dollars, and two rods of the value of fifty dollars each

of the goods, chattels, and personal property of one many then and there being found, feloniously did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

JOHN W. MASON, District Attorney

0790

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Schmidt, Louisa

DATE:

11/25/85



1982

0791

Witnesses:

[Handwritten signature]

[Handwritten signature]

Counsel,
Filed *[Handwritten]* day of *[Handwritten]* 188*[Handwritten]*
Pleads, *[Handwritten]*

KEEPING A HOUSE OF ILL FAME, ETC.
(Sections 822 and 885, Penal Code.)
THE PEOPLE
vs. *B*
Southern Indiana

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.
Part of June 16/87.
Bail forfeited
A True Bill.

[Handwritten signature]
Foreman

[Handwritten mark]

0792

Sec. 108-200.

3

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss

District Police Court.

Lizzie Schmidt being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is *h w* right to make a statement in relation to the charge against *h w*; that the statement is designed to enable *h w* if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against *h w* that *he* is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that *h w* waiver cannot be used against *h w* on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. *Lizzie Schmidt*

Question. How old are you?

Answer. *38 years of age.*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *Germany*

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. ~~UNKNOWN~~ *167 Forsyth St. 12 years.*

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. *Servant*

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. *I am not guilty*
Louise Schmidt

Taken before me this

27th

day of November 1888

W. H. ...
Notary Public.

0793

Sec. 151.

Police Court— 3rd District.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss *In the name of the People of the State of New York; To the Sheriff of the County of New York, or to any Marshal or Policeman of the City of New York, GREETING:*

Whereas, Complaint in writing and upon oath, has been made before the undersigned, one of the Police Justices for the City of New York, by *George L. Ayrton* of No. *10 West 10th* Street, that on the *19* day of *November* 188 *5*, at the City of New York, in the County of New York, *Jane Roen* did keep and maintain at the premises known as Number *156 Forsyth* Street, in said City, a *House of ill fame and prostitution* and there unlawfully procure and permit as well men as women of evil name and fame, and of dishonest conversation to visit, frequent and come together for unlawful sexual intercourse, and for the purpose of prostitution, and there unlawfully and wilfully did permit said men and women of evil name and fame there to be and remain ~~drinking~~, ~~drinking~~, disturbing the peace, whoring and misbehaving themselves whereby the peace, comfort, and decency of persons inhabiting and residing in the neighborhood and there passing is habitually disturbed in violation of the statute in such case made and provided.

THESE ARE, THEREFORE, in the name of the People of the State of New York, to Command you, the said Sheriff, Marshals and Policemen, and each and every of you, to apprehend the body of the said

Jane Roen
and all vile, disorderly and improper persons found upon the premises occupied by said *Jane Roen* and forthwith bring them before me, at the *Third* DISTRICT POLICE COURT, in the said City, or in case of my absence or inability to act, before the nearest or most accessible Police Justice in this City, to answer the said charge, and to be dealt with according to law.

Dated at the City of New York, this *20* day of *November* 188 *5*
Salomon R. Smith
POLICE JUSTICE

0794

Police Court— District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

George L. Craften

vs.

Lizzie Smith

WARRANT—Keeping Disorderly House, &c.

Dated *November 21st* 1885

Smith Magistrate

Craften Officer.

10th Precinct.

The Defendant *Lizzie Schmitt* taken, and brought before the Magistrate, to answer the within charge, pursuant to the command contained in this Warrant.

George L. Craften Officer.

Dated *November 21st* 1885

This Warrant may be executed on Sunday or at night.

Solon B. Smith Police Justice.

having been brought before me under this Warrant, is committed for examination to the WARDEN and KEEPER of the City Prison of the City of New York.

Dated

188

Police Justice.

The within named

0795

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

Lizzie Schmidt

Shee guilty thereof, I order that *she* be held to answer the same and *she* be admitted to bail in the sum of _____ Hundred Dollars, and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until *she* give such bail.

Dated *Nov. 21* 188 *Solomon B. Smith* Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named *Lizzie Schmidt* to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated *Nov 21* 188 *Solomon B. Smith* Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

_____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order *he* to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0796

Police Court

District

1991

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Geo. L. Arpken
10 Precinct.
Lizzie Schmier

Offence Keeping a House
of ill fame & prostitution

BAILED,

No. 1, by Louis C. ...
Residence 105 French Street.

No. 2, by ...
Residence ... Street.

No. 3, by ...
Residence ... Street.

No. 4, by ...
Residence ... Street.

Dated November 21 1885

Smith Magistrate
Arpken Officer.
11 7A Precinct.

Witnesses

No. ... Street.

No. ... Street.

No. 300 to answer ... Street.

Bailed, Nov. 21/85
Crown.

0797

Sec. 322, Penal Code.

3rd District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK ss.

George J. Arpken
of 10th Precinct Police Street, in said City, being duly sworn says

that at the premises known as Number 156 7th St. Street,
in the City and County of New York, on the 19th day of November 1885 and on divers
other days and times, between that day and the day of making this complaint

James Doe, whose real name is unknown
did unlawfully keep and maintain and yet continue to keep and maintain a House of ill fame
and prostitution and did then, and on the said other days and times, there unlawfully procure
and permit as well men as women of evil name and fame and of dishonest conversation to visit, frequent and come
together for unlawful sexual intercourse, and for the purpose of prostitution and lewdness, and then and on the said
other days and times, unlawfully and wilfully did permit and yet continues to permit said men and women of evil
name and fame there to be and remain ~~drinking, dancing, fighting~~ disturbing the peace, whoring and misbehaving
themselves, whereby the peace, comfort and decency of persons inhabiting and residing in the neighborhood, and
there passing is habitually disturbed, in violation of the statute in such case made and provided.

Deponent therefore prays, that the said James Doe
and all vile, disorderly and improper persons found upon the premises, occupied by said

James Doe
may be apprehended and dealt with as the law in such cases made and provided may direct.

Sworn to before me, this 20th day of November 1885

Solomon B. Smith Police Justice.

George J. Arpken

0798

VI 7 3

Police Court— District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Geo. J. Arpkens

vs.

Sam Loe

AFFIDAVIT—Keeping Disorderly House, &c.

Dated Nov. 20 188 5

Smith Justice.

Arpkens Officer.

10 Precinct.

WITNESSES :

0799

STATE OF NEW YORK.
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss:

POLICE COURT, 3 DISTRICT.

George L. Appen

of No. 10th Precinct Police Street, being duly sworn, deposes and says,

that on the 21st day of November 1885

at the City of New York, in the County of New York, deponent found

Lizzie Schmidt, New York,
in charge of and conducting
messes 15-6 Forsyth Street.

That she is the person described
in the annexed affidavit of de-
ponent by the name of James
Lee. That she is the keeper
and proprietor of said messes,
or a part thereof, which she
conducts and maintains as a
house of prostitution George L. Appen

Sworn to before me, this 21 day

of November 1885
John J. Sullivan
Notary Public

0800

POLICE COURT 3 DISTRICT.

City and County of New York, ss.:

THE PEOPLE,

vs.

Lizzi Schmidt

On Complaint of

Geo. T. Arpken

For

Keeping a Lodging
House
demand

After being informed of my rights under the law, I hereby ~~waive~~ ^{demand} a trial, by Jury, on this complaint, and demand a trial at the COURT OF ~~SPECIAL~~ ^{GENERAL} SESSIONS OF THE PEACE, to be holden in and for the City and County of New York.

Dated Nov. 21 188 5

Lizzi Schmidt

Colou B. Smith
Police Justice.

0801

District Attorney's Office.

PEOPLE

vs.

Louisa Schmidt

Bondsman +
Deft not found

June 13

0802

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,

against

Sarisa Schmidt

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this Indictment, accuse

Sarisa Schmidt

(Section 333,
Penal Code.)

of the CRIME OF KEEPING AND MAINTAINING A COMMON BAWDY HOUSE AND HOUSE OF ILL FAME, committed as follows:

The said *Sarisa Schmidt*,

late of the *South* Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the *nineteenth* day of *November*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-*nine*, and on divers other days and times as well before as afterwards, to the day of the taking of this inquisition, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, a certain common bawdy house and house of ill fame, unlawfully and wickedly did keep and maintain; and in the said house divers evil-disposed persons, as well men as women, and common prostitutes, on the days and times aforesaid, as well in the night as in the day, there unlawfully and wickedly did receive and entertain; and in which said house the said evil-disposed persons and common prostitutes, by the consent and procurement of the said

Sarisa Schmidt

on the days and times aforesaid, there did commit whoredom and fornication; whereby divers unlawful assemblies, disturbances and lewd offences on the days and times aforesaid, as well in the night as in the day, were there committed and perpetrated; to the great damage and common nuisance of all the good people of the said State there inhabiting and residing, in manifest destruction and subversion of, and against good morals and good manners, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

SECOND COUNT.—

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Sarisa Schmidt

(Section 885,
Penal Code.)

of the CRIME OF MAINTAINING A PUBLIC NUISANCE, committed as follows:

The said *Sarisa Schmidt*,

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the *nineteenth* day of *November*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred

0803

and eighty-*three*, and on divers other days and times between the said day and the day of the taking of this inquisition, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, unlawfully did keep and maintain a certain common, ill governed house, and in *her* said house, for *her* own lucre and gain, certain persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, as well men as women, of evil name and fame and dishonest conversation, to frequent and come together then and on said other days and times, there unlawfully and wilfully did cause and procure, and the said men and women in said house, at unlawful times, as well in the night as in the day, then and on said other days and times there to be and remain, tippling, drinking, gaming, cursing, swearing, quarreling, making great noises and otherwise misbehaving themselves, unlawfully and wilfully did permit and suffer, to the great annoyance, injury and danger of the comfort and repose of a great number of persons, good citizens of our said State there residing, and passing and repassing, to the common nuisance of the said citizens, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

THIRD COUNT.—

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Sonnia Schmidt

(Section 322,
Penal Code.)

of the CRIME OF KEEPING A DISORDERLY HOUSE, committed as follows:

The said *Sonnia Schmidt*,

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the *fourteenth* day of *November*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-*three*, and on divers other days and times between the said day and the day of the taking of this inquisition, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, unlawfully did keep a certain ill-governed and disorderly house, the same being a place of public resort, and in the said house and place of public resort, for *her* own lucre and gain, certain persons, as well men as women, of evil name and fame, and of dishonest conversation, to frequent and come together, then and on the said other days and times, there unlawfully and wilfully did cause and procure, and the said men and women, in *her* said house, at unlawful times, as well in the night as in the day, then and on the said other days and times, there to be and remain, drinking, tippling, gambling, rioting, disturbing the peace, whoring and misbehaving themselves, unlawfully and wilfully, did permit, and yet continues to permit, by reason whereof the peace, comfort and decency of the neighborhood around and about the said house were, and yet are, habitually disturbed, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

0804

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Schorr, Philip

DATE:

11/10/85



1982

0805

Witnesses:
John Achele
J. H. Sembo

83 3 7
Counsel, *J. H. Sembo*
Filed *10* day of *Mar* 1885
Pleads *Not Guilty*

THE PEOPLE
vs.
R
ASSAULT IN THE FIRST DEGREE, ETC.
(Sections 217 and 218, Penal Code).

Stadie Brown

Induced by
Special Agent for local
John J. G. G.
JOSEPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

And
A True Bill.
John J. G. G.
Foreman.
J. H. Sembo
J. H. Sembo

0806

Police Court 3d District.

City and County } ss.:
of New York, }

John Escher Achele

of No. 148 Orchard Street, aged 19 years,

occupation Sign Painter being duly sworn

deposes and says, that on 3d day of November 1885 at the City of New

York, in the County of New York,

he was violently and feloniously ASSAULTED and BEATEN by Philip Schorr

(name) who struck deponent a violent blow on the head with a piece of an iron gas pipe cutting him severely

with the felonious intent to take the life of deponent, or to do him grievous bodily harm; and without any justification on the part of the said assailant

Wherefore this deponent prays that the said assailant may be apprehended and bound to answer for the above assault, etc., and dealt with according to law.

Sworn to before me, this 8 day }
of Nov 1885 }

John Achele

Samuel O'Reilly Police Justice.

0807

Sec. 198-200.

3

District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss

Philip Schorr

being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. Philip Schorr

Question. How old are you?

Answer. 18 years

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. New York

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. 186 Second St 1 mo -

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. Laborer

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer.

I struck him with a smaller piece of gas pipe than the one now here shown but I done it in self defence

Philip Schorr

Taken before me this

day of

188

James J. Kelly

Police Justice.

0808

Sec. 151.

34 District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss *In the name of the People of the State of New York; To the Sheriff of the County of New York, or any Marshal or Policeman of the City of New York. GREETING:*

Whereas, Complaint in writing, and upon oath, has been made before the undersigned, one of the Police Justices for the City of New York, by *John Eichen* of No. *148 Orchard* Street, that on the *3* day of *Nov.* 188 *5* at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

and felonously *and* he was violently Assaulted and Beaten by *Philip Schaefer*

Wherefore, the said Complainant has prayed that the said Defendant may be apprehended and bound to answer the said complaint.

These are, Therefore, in the name of the PEOPLE of the State of New York, to command you the said Sheriff, Marshals and Policemen, and each and every of you, to apprehend the said Defendant and bring *him* forthwith before me, at the *3* DISTRICT POLICE COURT, in the said City, or in case of my absence or inability to act, before the nearest or most accessible Police Justice in this City, to answer the said charge, and to be dealt with according to law.

Dated at the City of New York, this *5* day of *Nov.* 188 *5*

Sam'l O'Reilly POLICE JUSTICE.

0809

POLICE COURT, DISTRICT.

THE PEOPLE, & c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

John Eichler

vs.

Philip Shaw

Warrant-A. & B.

153 E Houston
REMARKS.

Time of Arrest, *Nov 8th 1882*

Native of *U.S.*

Age, *18*

Sex *Male*

Dated *Nov 8th* 188*2*

W. Reilly Magistrate.

Bernhard Officer.

Complexion,

Color *W*

Profession, *None*

Married *No*

Single, *Yes*

Read, *Yes*

Write, *Yes*

186 Second St

The Defendant
taken, and brought before the Magistrate, to answer
the within charge, pursuant to the command con-
tained in this Warrant.

Officer

Dated 188

This Warrant may be executed on Sunday or at
night.

Samuel C. Reilly Police Justice.

08 10

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named defendant

guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of Fifteen Hundred Dollars, and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated Nov 8th 1885 Sam'l C. Bell Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named _____
to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____
_____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0811

Police Court 3^d District. 1522

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

John A. Richards
148 Orchard
Philip Schorr

Offence Felony
Assault

BAILED,

No. 1, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

No. 2, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

No. 4, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

Dated Nov 28 188 5

D O Reilly Magistrate

Bennholz Officer.

Court District.

Witnesses _____

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

\$ 1500 to answer SS

0812

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

Philip Schore

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Philip Schore

of the CRIME OF ASSAULT IN THE FIRST DEGREE, committed as follows:

The said Philip Schore,

late of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the 11th day of November, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, with force of arms, at the City and County aforesaid, in and upon the body of one John Dickel in the peace of the said People then and there being, feloniously did make an assault and with a certain piece of iron pipe

which the said Philip Schore in his right hand then and there had and held, the same being a deadly and dangerous weapon, wilfully and feloniously did beat, strike, stab, cut and wound, the same being such means and force as were likely to produce the death of the said John Dickel with intent thereby then and there feloniously and wilfully to kill, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

SECOND COUNT:

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Philip Schore

of the CRIME OF ASSAULT IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows:

The said Philip Schore,

late of the City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, in and upon the body of one John Dickel in the peace of the said People then and there being, feloniously did wilfully and wrongfully make an assault, and with a certain piece of iron pipe

which the said Philip Schore in his right hand then and there had and held, the same being a thing likely to produce grievous bodily harm, then and there feloniously did wilfully and wrongfully beat, strike, stab, cut and wound, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

0813

THIRD COUNT--

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said
— Philip Deane —
of the CRIME OF ASSAULT IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows:

The said Philip Deane

late of the City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year
aforesaid, at the City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, in and upon the body
of one John D'Arche —

in the peace of the said People then and there being, feloniously did wilfully and
wrongfully make an assault, and ~~in~~ the said John D'Arche,

in and upon the head — of ~~in~~ the
said John D'Arche — did then and there
feloniously, wilfully and wrongfully strike, beat, ~~cut~~, bruise and wound,
and did thereby then and there feloniously, wilfully and wrongfully inflict
upon ~~in~~ the said John D'Arche —
grievous bodily harm, to the great damage of the said John D'Arche —
against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace
of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

0814

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Schwalenberg, Henry

DATE:

11/19/85



1982

08 15

Keeping open on Sunday.

209

Witnesses

[Handwritten signature]

Counsel,

Filed *[Handwritten signature]* of *[Handwritten signature]* 1885

Pleas: *[Handwritten signature]* (20)

THE PEOPLE

vs.

B

[Handwritten signature]

[Handwritten signature]

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney

A TRUE BILL

[Handwritten signature]

Foreman.

[Handwritten signature]

Violation of Excise Law. (Sunday). (III Rev. Stat., 7th Edition, page 1983 Sec. 21, and page 1989, Sec. 5).

08 16

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

Henry Schneider

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Henry Schneider

of the CRIME OF SELLING INTOXICATING LIQUORS AND WINES AS A BEVERAGE ON SUNDAY, committed as follows :

The said

Henry Schneider

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the ~~fourth~~ day of ~~January~~, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-~~five~~, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with force and arms, certain intoxicating liquors and certain wines, to wit : One gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain intoxicating liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell as a beverage to

certain ——— persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

SECOND COUNT :

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Henry Schneider

of the CRIME OF GIVING AWAY INTOXICATING LIQUORS AND WINES AS A BEVERAGE, ON SUNDAY, committed as follows :

The said

Henry Schneider

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit : On the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same being the first day of the week,

0817

commonly called and known as Sunday, with force and arms, certain intoxicating liquors and certain wines, to wit: One gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain intoxicating liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did give away as a beverage to

certain _____ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

THIRD COUNT:

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Henry DeWaldenberg

of the CRIME OF KEEPING OPEN ON SUNDAY a place licensed for the SALE OF STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS, WINES, ALE AND BEER, committed as follows:

The said *Henry DeWaldenberg*

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, the same being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, being then and there in charge of and having the control of certain premises at number

273 Monroe Street,

in the City and County aforesaid, which said place was then duly licensed as a place for the sale of strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, with force and arms, at the City and County aforesaid, the said place, so licensed as aforesaid, unlawfully did not close, and keep closed, and on the said day, the said place so licensed as aforesaid, unlawfully did then and there open, and cause and procure, and suffer and permit, to be open, and to remain open, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

08 18

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Shaw, George

DATE:

11/23/85



1982

0819

241 Adams

Hamilton

Counsel,

Filed *23* day of *Nov* 188*8*

Pleas *Winnell*

Hamilton
[Sections 317, 314, Penal Code]

THE PEOPLE

vs.

R
George Shaw



RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

off. J. M. [unclear]

A True Bill.

L. Carter Jr.

Part II May 11/87. Foreman

Pleas Guilty

May 11/86

Price \$100.

Witnesses:

James M. [unclear]

Capt. [unclear]

0820

Police Court-- 2 District,

Isaac Stern
of No 109 E 4th St

upon his oath complains that a man named ~~Ball~~ ^{Howley} ~~James~~ ^{Edwards}
at premises No. 151 Bleeker Street, in the City
and County of New York, unlawfully keeps and maintains a Gambling House, and knowingly
permits divers, idle, disorderly and evil disposed persons to resort there, to gamble and play at
cards and games of chance for money, in violation of the law, and to the common nuisance of the
People of the State of New York.

Deponent further says that in said premises on the ^{fourth} ~~second~~ day of
October 1885 ~~in~~ ^{Six} George Starr (now h. u. c.)
did unlawfully and feloniously deal the game called ~~Faro~~ ^{Six}, and did then and there within the space
of twenty-four hours win from deponent ~~divers~~ ^{divers} persons assembled in said
place the sum of about two dollars
at said game, and that within said premises are exhibited, kept and used by

Ingallo
~~Ball~~ and Starr

faro and other gambling tables, checks, cards, devices and apparatus, for the purpose of gambling,
the discovery of which would tend to establish the truth of the charge herein made.

Sworn to before me, this 4 day of October 1885 } Isaac Stern

Samuel O'Neill
POLICE JUSTICE.

0821

Sec. 198-200

2

District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

George Shaw being duly examined before the under-
signed, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is h_____ right to
make a statement in relation to the charge against h_____; that the statement is designed to
enable h_____ if h_____ see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against h_____
that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that h_____ waiver cannot be used
against h_____ on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. George Shaw

Question. How old are you?

Answer. 28 years

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. U S

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. 107 ave a. 1 week

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. Peddler

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the
testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your
exculpation?

Answer.

I am not guilty and demand
a trial by jury

George Shaw

Taken before me this

day of

Oct 11

1888

Samuel W. McNeill
Police Justice.

0822

Police Court--Second District.

STATE OF NEW YORK. }
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

To the Officers of Police, and Patrolmen, of the Police Department of said City, and to each of them:

Whereas, complaint on oath has been made before me one of the Police Justices in the City of New York, by Isaac Stern of No. 109 East 4th Street, that the premises known as No. 151 Bleeker St in said City, are kept and maintained by

a man named Hall first name unknown as a Gambling House and a place of resort for idle and disorderly persons, to gamble and play at cards and games of chance for money in violation of the law, and to the common nuisance of the People of the State of New York, ~~and that in said premises on or about the~~ 18 day of 18 said 18 did feloniously win and receive from complainant 1 dollars in money, ~~at~~ and by ~~means of dealing and playing the game called Faro,~~ and that upon and within said premises may be found faro and other gambling tables, checks, cards, devices and apparatus used solely for the purpose of gambling, and the discovery of which might tend to establish the truth of said complaint.

These are therefore, in the name of the People of the State of New York, to Command you, the said Officers and Patrolmen, and each of you, to enter the said premises and therein make diligent search for such gambling tools, devices and apparatus, and if such be found to bring the same forthwith before me, or some other Police Justice for said City together with the said Hall and all other idle and disorderly persons who may be found and arrested upon and within said premises, to answer the said charge, and to be dealt with according to law.

Given under my hand and seal this 4 day of Oct 1887 at the City of New York.

James C. Kelly
POLICE JUSTICE.

0823

Police Court _____ District.

REMARKS.

THE PEOPLE, & c.
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

WARRANT FOR GAMBLING.

Time of Arrest _____

Native of _____

Age _____

Color _____

vs.

Dated, _____ 18

Magistrate.

Officer.

Defendant _____

taken and brought before _____

as within commanded _____

Disposition

*This Warrant may be
Executed on Sunday or night*

*Samuel O'Neil
Police Justice*

0824

Sec. 198-200

J. J. District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

Hawley Engells

being duly examined before the under-
signed, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to
make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to
enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him
that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used
against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. *Hawley Engells*

Question. How old are you?

Answer. *44 years*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *Columbia County, New York.*

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. *St. Charles Hotel Broadway & West 4th St. 3 years.*

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. *Madman*

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the
testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your
exculpation?

Answer. *I am not guilty*

Hawley Engells

Taken before me this

day of

October

188*7*

J. J. J.
Police Justice.

0825

\$500 in ex
DOM Oct 7.

Police Court - 2 1089 District.

THE PEOPLE, &c,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Isaac Stern
109 E 42 St

vs.
Hawley Ingalls

George Shaw

Offence Keeping Gambling House

Dated Oct 4 1885

D O Kelly Magistrate.

Capt Bragan Officer.

15th Precinct.

Witnesses
No. Street.

Warrant issued for

No. 1. Hall Hawley Ingalls Street.

No 1 dis

No. 2
\$ 5000 to answer

Bailees
(Court)

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime charged is a misdemeanor - has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named defendant guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of Hundred Dollars and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated Oct 4 1885

I have admitted the above-named to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

James O'Connell Police Justice.

Defendant
I have this day given my oath as a Justice of the Peace and certify that the within named defendant is guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated Oct 7 1885

Police Justice.

BAILED
No. 1, by Thurcio Aquilar
Residence 5 24th Avenue
No. 2, by _____
Residence _____ Street.
No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street.
No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

0826

Sec. 192.

20

District Police Court.

Undertaking to appear during the Examination.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

An information having been laid before Maurice D. Mor a Police Justice
of the City of New York, charging Hawley Ingalls Defendant with
the offence of Keeping a scabby house

and he having been brought before said Justice for an examination of said charge, and it having been made to
appear to the satisfaction of said Justice that said examination should be adjourned to some other day, and the hear-
ing thereof having been adjourned,

We Hawley Ingalls Defendant of St. Charles
Hotel Bluekey Street, by occupation a Brooklyn MacLinn
and William Kent of No. 26 Van dan
Street, by occupation a Broker Surety, hereby jointly and severally undertake that
the above named Hawley Ingalls
shall personally appear before the said Justice at the District Police Court in the City of New York,
during the said examination, or that we will pay to the People of the State of New York the sum of _____
Hundred Dollars.

Taken and acknowledged before me this

day of October 1888

J. H. Hawley Ingalls

Wm. Kent

[Signature]

POLICE JUSTICE.

0827

CITY AND COUNTY } ss.
OF NEW YORK, }

Sworn to before me, this
day of October
1881
Police Justice.

the within named Bail and Surety being duly sworn, says, that *he* is a resident and *House* holder within the said County and State, and is worth *the* Hundred Dollars,

exclusive of property exempt from execution, and over and above the amount of all his debts and liabilities, and that his property consists of *House hold goods, Brokerage Business and Money in Bank and personal property of value of four thousand dollars over all debts.*

Wm J Kent

District Police Court.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

vs.

Undertaking to appear during the Examination.

Taken the... day of...

188

Justice.

0828

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

Figoraz Thoms

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Figoraz Thoms

of the CRIME OF Keeping a room to be used for gambling.

committed as follows:

The said Figoraz Thoms,

late of the 5th Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the second day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, did unlawfully keep a room to be used for gambling, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided and against the peace and dignity of the said People.

Second Count: (2344)

And the Grand Jury aforesaid by this indictment further accuse the said Figoraz Thoms of the crime of allowing a room to be used for gambling committed as follows:

The said Figoraz Thoms late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, at New York to wit. on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid.

(2343)

0829

did feloniously allow a room to be used
for gambling, against the form of the
Statute in such case made and provided,
and against the peace and dignity of
the said People.

Randolph C. Martin,

District Attorney.

0830

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Sheridan, James

DATE:

11/23/85



1982

1380

249

Counsel, *[Signature]*
Filed *23* day of *Nov* 188*5*

Pleads
THE PEOPLE
Nov 24 vs. *R*
General Sherman
[Sections 528, 532, Penal Code].
PETIT LARCENY.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
Dr Nov 24/85 District Attorney.
Made guilty
A True Bill.

L. Carter Jr.
Foreman
Sherman *713*

Witnesses:
[Signature]
[Signature]
[Signature]
[Signature]
[Signature]

0832

Police Court— District.

Affidavit—Larceny.

City and County } ss.:
of New York,

of No. 606 N 69th St Patrick Sheridan
Street, aged 30 years,
occupation Marry man being duly sworn

deposes and says, that on the 8 day of October 1888 at the City of New York, in the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen and carried away from the possession of deponent, in the day time, the following property viz:

One watch of the value of ~~over~~ ^{Twenty} ~~ten~~ dollars

the property of deponent

and that this deponent has a probable cause to suspect James Sheridan does suspect that the said property was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away by James Sheridan now here

from the fact that on said date deponent missed said property and that on October 9th said James Sheridan gave to deponent's wife a ticket representing said property which had been purchased that deponent went to the jewelry office of A. Schlang & Co. at 558 8th Avenue and saw said property and identified said watch as that which was stolen from him, deponent further says that said James Sheridan acknowledged to him that he had stolen and purchased said watch. Patrick Sheridan

Sworn to before me, this 11 day of November 1888
Wm. B. Smith
Police Justice.

0833

Sec. 198-200.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, ss

District Police Court.

James Sheridan being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. *James Sheridan*

Question. How old are you?

Answer. *17 years*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *U.S.*

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. *606 W 69. 18 months*

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. *Farmer*

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. *I am guilty of taking the watch but intended to pay back the amount I pawned it for.*

James Sheridan
mark

Taken before me this

day of *Nov* 188*8*

James Sheridan

Police Justice.

0834

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

James Sheridan
_____ guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of *Five* Hundred Dollars, and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated *Nov 11* 188 *Andrew Smith* Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named _____
to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____
_____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0835

Police Court ¹²⁷⁵ District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Patrick Sheridan
606 W. 119th St.
James Sheridan

- 1 _____
- 2 _____
- 3 _____
- 4 _____

Officer *J. H. ...*

BAILED,

No. 1, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 2, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

Dated *Nov 11* 188*1*
J. H. ... Magistrate
J. H. ... Officer.
31 Precinct.

Witnesses *A. Schlang & Co.*
No. *558 - 8th Ave* Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.
\$ *500* to answer.

Cm

0836

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,

against

James Sheridan

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

James Sheridan

of the CRIME OF PETIT LARCENY, committed as follows:

The said James Sheridan,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the Fifth day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-nine, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms,

one watch of the value of twenty dollars,

of the goods, chattels and personal property of one Sarah Sheridan,

then and there being found, then and there unlawfully did steal, take and carry away, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

James Martin, District Attorney

0037

SECOND COUNT—

AND THE GRAND JURY AFORESAID, by this indictment, further accuse the said

of the CRIME OF CRIMINALLY RECEIVING STOLEN PROPERTY, committed as follows:

The said

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms,

of the goods, chattels and personal property of one

by certain persons to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, then lately before unlawfully stolen, taken and carried away from the said

unlawfully and unjustly, did feloniously receive and have; the said

then and there well knowing the said goods, chattels and personal property to have been unlawfully stolen, taken and carried away, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

0838

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Siebert, Adolph

DATE:

11/24/85



1982

0839

267

Counsel, *W. R. Randall*
Filed *27* day of *Nov* 188*5*

Pleads *Not Guilty*

VIOLATION OF EXCISE LAW.
[III, R. S., (7 Ed), page 1981, § 18, and Laws of 1888, Chap. 340, § 6].

THE PEOPLE

vs.

R
Richard Dick
151 E. Houston

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

A True Bill.

J. Cattan Jr
April 27/88. Foreman.
Fred J. Maguire

Witnesses:

W. R. Randall

Bailed by
Louis Singer
203 Delaware St.

TORN PAGE

0840

Sec. 198-200.

34 District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, ss

Adolph Liebert being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. Adolph Liebert

Question. How old are you?

Answer. 18 years

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. Germany

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. 250 E. 42nd St. four months

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. waiter

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. I am not guilty I sold weisbeer and I demand a trial by Jury
Adolf Liebert.

Taken before me this 22 day of March 1888
Wm. J. ...
District Justice.

0841

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

Joseph Liebert

One ~~guilty~~ thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of _____ Hundred Dollars, and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated *Nov. 22* 188*5* *Solou B. Smith* Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named _____

to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

_____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0842

1787

Police Court 3^d District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Thomas Deussen
10 Precinct.

Adolph Liebert

Office *Deussen*

2 _____
3 _____
4 _____

BAILED,

No. 1, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 2, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

Dated *May 22* 1885

Smith Magistrate

Deussen Officer.

10 Precinct.

Witnesses _____

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. *100* Street,

\$ _____ to answer *G. S.*

Com.

0843

Excise Violation—Selling Without License.

POLICE COURT— 34 DISTRICT,

City and County } ss.
of New York, }

of the 10th Precinct Police James Ferris Street,
of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the 21 day
of November 1885, in the City of New York, in the County of New York, at
No. 151 East Houston Street,
Adolph Liebert (now here)

did then and THERESELL, CAUSE, suffer and permit to be sold, under his direction and authority,
strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, being intoxication liquors, in quantities less than
five gallons at a time, to be drunk in the house or premises aforesaid WITHOUT HAVING A
PROPER LICENSE THEREFOR contrary to and in violation of the statute in such case made
and provided and that the defendant did
sell two glasses of beer to two
men unknown to defendant and
received the money for the same

WHEREFORE, deponent prays that said Adolph Liebert
may be arrested and dealt with according to law.

Sworn to before me, this 22 day }
of November 1885 } Thomas Perrin
Solou Bismuth Police Justice.

0844

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

AGAINST

Adolph Siebert

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment accuse

Adolph Siebert

(III. Revised Statutes, [7th edition] p. 1931 Section 13.)

of the CRIME OF SELLING STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS AND WINES WITHOUT A LICENSE, committed as follows:

The said *Adolph Siebert*

late of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the *Twenty first* day of *November*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *five*, at the City and County aforesaid, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whiskey, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell, in quantity less than five gallons at a time, to

certain _____ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, without having a license therefor, as required by law, contrary to the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the People of the State of New York.

(Laws of 1853, Chapter 340, section 5.)

SECOND COUNT:

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment further accuse the said

Adolph Siebert

of the CRIME OF SELLING STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS, ALES, WINE AND BEER WITHOUT A LICENSE, to be drank upon the premises, committed as follows:

The said *Adolph Siebert*

late of the City and County aforesaid, afterwards to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the City and County aforesaid, and at the premises there situate known as number *151*

East Houston Street

certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain ales, wines and beer, to wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whiskey, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell to

certain _____ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, to be drank upon the premises aforesaid, without having a license therefor, as required by law, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

0845

(Laws of 1883,
chapter 810, sec-
tion 5.)

THIRD COUNT:

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment further accuse the said

Adolph Schubert
of the CRIME OF GIVING AWAY STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS, ALES,
WINE AND BEER, WITHOUT A LICENSE, to be drank upon the premises, committed
as follows:

The said

Adolph Schubert

late of the City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at
the City and County aforesaid, and at the premises there situate, known as number 151

East Houston Street

certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain ales, wine and beer, to wit: one gill of wine, one
gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whiskey, one gill of cordial, one gill of
bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of
a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did give
away to

certain persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, to be drank
upon the premises aforesaid, without having a license therefor, as required by law, against the
form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State
of New York, and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

0846

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Simonson, George

DATE:

11/30/85



1982

0047

Witnesses:

Wm. Hogan
J. H. Brennan

It appearing by the within affidavits that it is impossible to secure the attendance of *William Hogan* a material and necessary witness for the People and without whose evidence a conviction cannot be had. I therefore respectfully recommend that the defendant herein, *George Amerson* be discharged on his own recognizance.

N. Y., Dec. 24, 1885

Randolph B. Martine
District Attorney.

293

Counsel,
Filed *20* day of *Nov* 1885
Pleads *Not guilty* to a *W.*

THE PEOPLE
vs. *R*
George Amerson
Defendant
Dec. 24, 1885
Dec. 24, 1885

Robbery, (MONEY) degree.
(Secs. 224 and 228, Penal Code.)

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

A True Bill.

L. Calver
Foreman.

Compt. Awarney - of the
Rec. 1885-24-1885

0848

PART I.

THE COURT ROOM IS IN THE SECOND STORY AND FRONTING THE PARK.
If this Subpoena is disobeyed, an attachment will immediately issue
Bring this Subpoena with you, and give it to the Officer at the Court
Room door, that your attendance may be known.

(SEE OTHER SIDE FOR OTHER DIRECTIONS)

Affidavit wanted

SUBPOENA

FOR A WITNESS TO ATTEND THE

Court of General Sessions of the Peace,

The People of the State of New York,

to *William Hogan*

of No. *423 East 10th* Street.

GREETING :

WE COMMAND YOU, That, all business and excuses ceasing, you *appear* in your proper person, before the Court of General Sessions of the Peace, to be holden in and for the City and County of New York, at the Sessions Building, in the Park of the said City, on the *23* day of *March* instant, at the hour of eleven in the forenoon of the same day, to testify the truth, and give evidence in our behalf, against

George Simonson
in a case of Felony whereof *he stands* indicted. And this you are not to omit, under the penalty of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars.

Witness, Hon. FREDERICK SMYTH, Recorder, of our said City, at the City Hall, in our said City, the first Monday of *March* in the year of our Lord, 188⁵.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE, *District Attorney.*

0849

Court of General Sessions.

Subpoena, of which the within is a copy being duly sworn, deposes and says he

State of New York, City and County of New York, ss. If you know of more testimony than was produced before the Magistrate, or if a fact which you think material was not there brought out, please state the same to the District Attorney, in the District Attorney's Office. If ill, when served, please send timely word to the District Attorney, and you may save time, please inquire in the District Attorney's Office.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

George Simonson

City and County of New York, ss.:

George G. Banzer being duly

sworn, deposes and says: I reside at No. 339 East 22^d Street, in the City of New York. I am a subpoena server in the

office of the District Attorney of the City and County of New York. On the 21st day of December 1885, I called at No. 423 East 10th Street

the alleged residence of William Hogan

the complainant herein, to serve him with the annexed subpoena, and was informed by his boarding mistress that he left the house some time ago saying he was going to Court and never returned, that she has not seen or heard of him since, and he has left his working clothes behind him.

I then called at the Malt house cor. of Dry Dock + 11th St. his place of employment and was there informed by the foreman that the said Hogan was employed there and asked to be excused one day to attend court, since then he has not returned though several dollars are due him for wages. I have been unable to gain any information as to the present whereabouts of the said William Hogan.

I have called on 2 or 3 previous occasions with the same results.

Sworn to before me, this 22 day of December, 1885
Rudolph L. Scharf
Court of Deeds

George G. Banzer
Subpoena Server.

0850

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS,

The People, &c.

vs.
George Johnson

OFFENSE

RAUDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

0851

PART I.
THE COURT ROOM IS IN THE SECOND STORY AND FRONTING THE PARK.
If this Subpoena is disobeyed, an attachment will immediately issue.
Bring this Subpoena with you, and give it to the Officer at the Court Room door, that your attendance may be known.
[SEE OTHER SIDE FOR OTHER DIRECTIONS.]

SUBPOENA
FOR A WITNESS TO ATTEND THE
Court of General Sessions of the Peace,

C

The People of the State of New York,
To *William Hogan*
of No. *423 East 10th* Street.

GREETING :

WE COMMAND YOU, That, all business and excuses ceasing, you *appear* in your proper person, before the Court of General Sessions of the Peace, to be holden in and for the City and County of New York, at the Sessions Building, in the Park of the said City, on the *23* day of *December* instant, at the hour of eleven in the forenoon of the same day, to testify the truth, and give evidence in our behalf, against

George Simonson

in a case of Felony whereof *he stands* indicted And this you are not to omit, under the penalty of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars.

Witness, Hon. FREDERICK SMYTH, Recorder, of our said City, at the City Hall, in our said City, the first Monday of *December* in the year of our Lord, 188*8*.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE, *District Attorney.*

0853

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS.

The People, &c.

vs.

Bergerson

OFFENCE

RANDOLPH B. MARTINEA
District Attorney.

0854

Police Court-- 3 District.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK. }

William Hogan

of No. 423 East Tenth Street, Aged 30 Years

Occupation Baker being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the

23 day of August 1885, at the 11th Ward of the City of New York,

in the County of New York, was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away, from the person of deponent by force and violence, without his consent and against his will, the following property, viz:

Twenty two dollars and seventy five cents in good and lawful money of the United States

of the value of (\$22.75) DOLLARS,
the property of Deponent.

and that this deponent has a probable cause to suspect, and does suspect, that the said property was feloniously taken, stolen, and carried away, by force and violence as aforesaid by

Joseph Byrne, Charles Reilly, and George Simonson, ^{now here,} The said Joseph Byrne and Charles Reilly have already been convicted of the said robbery in the Court of General Sessions and are now undergoing a term of imprisonment for the same. The said Simonson was with the said Byrne and Reilly at the time of the robbery. He actually held deponent while deponent's pocket book containing the said money was taken by the said Byrne, and he also struck deponent at said time.

William Hogan

day of September 1885
Sworn to before me, this 25th day of September 1885
Police Justice

0855

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

George Simmons

DM ~~guilty thereof~~, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of _____ Hundred Dollars, and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated *Nov. 25* 188 *Solomon* Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named _____

to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____

_____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0856

Police Court 3 / 1308 District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

William Hogan
423 E. 10 St.
George Ammon

Robbery
Offence

2 _____
3 _____
4 _____

BAILED,

No. 1, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

No. 2, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

No. 4, by _____

Residence _____ Street.

Dated *Nov 25* 188

John B. Smith Magistrate

Brennan Johnson Officer.

11 Precinct.

Witnesses _____

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

\$ *1000* to answer *J. P.*

com

0857

Sec. 198-200.

3 District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, { ss

George Simonson being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. George Simonson

Question. How old are you?

Answer. 27 years

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. New York City

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. 96. Barrow St. about a month.

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. Oyster man

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. I have nothing to say, I know nothing about it.

George H. Simonson
neph

Taken before me this 25th day of March 1885
John D. Smith
Police Justice.

0858

George Simpson

Two other robbers in prison
for same offense - They are
subsequently arrested -

Whitson - W. H. Johnson
P. M. Johnson

0859

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,

against

George Simonson

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment accuse

George Simonson

of the crime of ROBBERY IN THE First DEGREE, committed as follows:

The said George Simonson,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the twenty third day of August, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, in the night time of the said day, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, in and upon one William Steager, in the peace of the said People then and there being, feloniously did make an assault, and one promissory note for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of twenty dollars, and of the value of twenty dollars; two promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of ten dollars each; four promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of five dollars, and of the value of five dollars each; ten promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of two dollars, and of the value of two dollars each; ten promissory notes for the payment of money, being then and there due and unsatisfied (and of the kind known as United States Treasury Notes), of the denomination of one dollar, and of the value of one dollar each; one promissory note for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of twenty dollars; two promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of ten dollars each; four promissory notes for the payment of money (and of the kind known as bank notes), being then and there due and unsatisfied, of the value of five dollars each, and divers coins, of a number, kind and denomination to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, of the value of

twenty two dollars and seventy five cents,

of the goods, chattels and personal property of the said William Steager, from the person of the said William Steager, against the will, and by violence to the person of the said William Steager, then and there violently and feloniously did rob, steal, take and carry away, the said

George Simonson, then and there aided and abetted by two accomplices actually present, to wit: Joseph Byrnes and Charles Reilly

against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

0860

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Sneller, Louis

DATE:

11/13/85



1982

1324 u.

Counsel,

Filed 13th day of

Nov 1888

Pleas

Magistry (16)

THE PEOPLE

vs.

Assault in the Second Degree.
(Resting Arrest.)
(Section 218, Penal Code.)

P

Sonius Sinden

(Defendant)

Sumo remedy Co
April 14/89

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

By 6/11/89 District Attorney.

Indt. dis mound rdt d'weld.

A True Bill.

J. Calhoun
Foreman.

W. J. ...
G. ...

Witnesses:

[Signature]

0862

Sec. 198-200.

2 District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss

Hans Muller

being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question What is your name?

Answer *Hans Muller*

Question. How old are you?

Answer *Seventy-two years*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *New York City*

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. *No 352 West 87th St. Ten years*

Question What is your business or profession?

Answer *Superintendent of a Billiard-room*

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. *I am not guilty, and did not intend to assault the Officer - Louis, Snelley*

Taken before me this

day of *November* 188*6*

Seay Conroy

Police Justice.

0863

Police Court— District.

STATE OF NEW YORK,
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } SS.

of No. 29th Street Salvo Street,

being duly sworn, deposes and says, that
on Tuesday the tenth day of November
in the year 1885 at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

he was violently ASSAULTED and BEATEN by Thomas Miller (was here)
who came behind deponent and violently struck him
around the body with his arms and attempted to throw
deponent down, while deponent was in uniform and
engaged in the discharge of his duty as a police-officer.

without any justification on the part of the said assailant.

Wherefore this deponent prays that the said assailant may be apprehended and bound to answer the above assault, &c., and be dealt with according to law.

Sworn to before me, this 10
day of November 1885

Frederic W. Korman

Chas. Croft Police Justice.

0864

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named

Francis Miller

Francis guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of *Five* Hundred Dollars and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated *Nov 10* 188 *5* *W. J. [Signature]* Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated 188 . Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order h to be discharged.

Dated 188 . Police Justice.

0865

Police Court 2 ¹²³² District.

THE PEOPLE, & c
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Frederick W. Roman
19 Precinct
James Miller

Office of Deputy Magistrate

Dated November 10 188 5

Margie Payer Magistrate.
Frederick W. Roman Officer.

19 Precinct.

Witnesses
No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

\$ 300 to answer G.S.
Call

BAILED
No. 1, by Patrick J. O'Connell
Residence 154 East 132nd St. Street.

on 2nd with 1st in the
No. 2, by James J. O'Connell
Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street

No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

0866

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
against

Louis Smeller

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Louis Smeller

of the CRIME OF ASSAULT IN THE SECOND DEGREE, committed as follows:

The said *Louis Smeller*,

late of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the
fourth day of *November*, in the year
of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *five*, at the City and County
aforesaid, with force and arms feloniously made an assault in and upon one

Frederick W. Hoffman,

then and there being a *patrolman* of the Municipal Police of the City of
New York, and as such *patrolman* being then and there engaged in the lawful

apprehension of the said *Louis Smeller*

for a misdemeanor,

and the said *Louis Smeller*,

him, the said *Frederick W. Hoffman*,

then and there feloniously did beat, strike, wound and otherwise illtreat, with intent

then and there and thereby to prevent and resist the lawful *apprehension*

of *himself* as aforesaid,

against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace
of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

0867

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Sneller, Sonis

DATE:

11/13/85



1982

0868

133-A

Counsel,
Filed 13 day of Apr 1885
Pleads *Argued* 11

[Section 25, Penal Code]

THE PEOPLE

vs.

Donis & madden
(Arrest)

Sum. & rec. by Ch
Apr 14/85

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

Pr Apr 21/85 District Attorney.

Pr dt. dismissed & def. died

A TRUE BILL.

S. Cather Jr.

Foreman

April 21st
G. H. [unclear]
[unclear]

Witnesses

[Signature]

0869

Sec. 198-200.

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss

District Police Court.

Louis Sneller being duly examined before, the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question What is your name?

Answer *Louis Sneller*

Question. How old are you?

Answer *Twenty-two years*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *New York City*

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. *No 352 West 57th St. Ten years*

Question What is your business or profession?

Answer *Superintendent of a Billiard room*

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. *I am not guilty* *Louis Sneller*

Officer Kronman, sworn further says that the defendant said I am a poor man and want to make a dollar - at the time of the arrest.

Sworn to before me this 10 day of November 1885

W. Kornman

and sworn
John J. ...

Taken before me this

day of *November* 1885

W. Kornman

Police Justice.

0870

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named

~~by~~ thereof, I order that he James Miller be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of Five Hundred Dollars and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated November 10 1885 Aug Omer Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named _____ to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated _____ 188 . _____ Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 . _____ Police Justice.

0871

Police Court 2 1733 District.

THE PEOPLE, &c,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Warden W. W. Bennett
1st Precinct
James Miller

- 1 _____
- 2 _____
- 3 _____
- 4 _____

Offence Loafing

Dated November 10 188 5

Margie Powers Magistrate.

Ward W. Bennett Officer.

19 Precinct.

Witnesses _____

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

\$ 1000 ⁰⁰/₁₀₀ to answer G. J.
Case

BAILED

No. 1, by Patrick Snell
Residence 154 East 32nd Street.

on bail returned in the
No. 1, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

0872

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

POLICE COURT, 2 DISTRICT.

Frederick M. Barnman
of No. 29th Street, aged 37 years,
occupation Policeman being duly sworn deposes and says,
that on the 10th day of November, 1885

at the City of New York, in the County of New York, James Mueller (now here) did occupy a portion of the sidewalk on West 28th Street near Broadway, the same being a public thoroughfare in the City of New York and did have in his possession four cards with the names of horses printed thereon and two slips with the names of horses written thereon for the purpose of recording or registering bets or wagers or of selling pools, and did record or register bets or wagers and sell pools upon the result of a trial or contests of speed or power or endurance of certain horses, whose names appear on said cards or slips; and did have in his possession

Sworn to before me, this 15th day of

November 1885

day

at New York
Police Justice.

0073

Police Court, _____ District

THE PEOPLE, &c.,

ON THE COMPLAINT OF

vs.

ARRADAVIT.

Dated _____ 188

Magistrate.

Officer.

Witness,

Disposition,

Certain money which had been wagered or staked upon such result or results in violation of Section 351 of the Penal Code of the State of New York

do hereby certify that
10 day of November 1886

Geo. Cowy
Police Justice

Ernest W. Kornman

0874

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

Louis Droller

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Louis Droller

of the Crime of a Misdemeanor.

committed as follows:

The said Louis Droller,

late of the 2nd Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the 10th day of November, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-nine, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid,

did unlawfully occupy a space upon public grounds, to wit: a space upon the sidewalk of a certain public street and common highway there known as West Street, in the City of New York, and thereon erected and placed certain signs, boards, apparatus and paraphernalia for the purpose of recording and registering debts and mortgages, and of selling goods, upon the result of which said signs and posters of sale, exposed and showed evidence of an intention to violate the laws of the City and County of New York, in such case made and provided and

0075

against the peace and dignity of the
said People.

Randolph Martin

District Attorney

0876

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Socks, Henry

DATE:

11/16/85



1982

0877

113

Witnesses:
[Handwritten signatures]

Counsel,
Filed 16 day of Nov 1885
Pleads Warrant (17)

Violation of Excise Law.
(Sunday).
III Rev. Stat., (7th Edition), page 1983 Sec. 21, and
page 1980, Sec. 51.

THE PEOPLE

vs.

B
Samuel Soder

May 2/3
[Handwritten notes]

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

[Handwritten initials]

A TRUE BILL.

L. Carter Jr.

Foreman.

*City, witness for District
Prosecutor
A. Carter, District Attorney*

0878

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

Samuel Soder,

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Samuel Soder

of the CRIME OF SELLING INTOXICATING LIQUORS AND WINES AS A BEVERAGE ON SUNDAY, committed as follows :

The said *Samuel Soder,*

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the ~~eighteenth~~ day of ~~January~~ *June*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-*five*, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, with force and arms, certain intoxicating liquors and certain wines, to wit : One gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain intoxicating liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did sell as a beverage to

certain _____ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

SECOND COUNT :

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Samuel Soder

of the CRIME OF GIVING AWAY INTOXICATING LIQUORS AND WINES AS A BEVERAGE, ON SUNDAY, committed as follows :

The said *Samuel Soder,*

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit : On the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the same being the first day of the week,

0879

commonly called and known as Sunday, with force and arms, certain intoxicating liquors and certain wines, to wit: One gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain intoxicating liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did give away as a beverage to

certain _____ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

THIRD COUNT:

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

Dennis Godes

of the CRIME OF KEEPING OPEN ON SUNDAY a place licensed for the SALE OF STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS, WINES, ALE AND BEER, committed as follows:

The said *Dennis Godes*,

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, the same being the first day of the week, commonly called and known as Sunday, being then and there in charge of and having the control of certain premises at number

145 Avenue R.

in the City and County aforesaid, which said place was then duly licensed as a place for the sale of strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, with force and arms, at the City and County aforesaid, the said place, so licensed as aforesaid, unlawfully did not close, and keep closed, and on the said day, the said place so licensed as aforesaid, unlawfully did then and there open, and cause and procure, and suffer and permit, to be open, and to remain open, against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

0880

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Stabile, Alfonso

DATE:

11/06/85



1982

0001

36

Witnesses:

J. Kelly

Counsel,

W. H. Brown
Filed *Dec 30* 1885

Pleaded *Not Guilty*

THE PEOPLE

vs.

R

Defendant

[Section Penal Code]

RANPOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney

Dec 30 1885
J. Kelly

A TRUE BILL.

Wm. H. Brown

Dec 30

J. Kelly

Foreman

J. Kelly

Pl 1-25

0002

Sec. 198-200

2 District Police Court.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

Alfonso Stabile being duly examined before the under-
signed, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to
make a statement in relation to the charge against *him*, that the statement is designed to,
enable *him* if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against *him*
that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used
against *him* on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer.

Alfonso Stabile

Question. How old are you?

Answer.

32 Years of age

Question. Where were you born?

Answer.

Italy

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer.

169 Thompson St (2 weeks)

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer.

Draw Mason

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the
testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your
exculpation?

Answer.

*I am guilty.
Alfonso Stabile*

Taken before me this
1st day of
Alfonso Stabile
1888
Police Justice.

0883

Police Court 2 District 12 07

THE PEOPLE, &c,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF
Francis Morley
15 Prec

vs.
Alonso Stabile

Offence Attempt at
suicide

Dated November 4 1885

Smith Magistrate.
Morley Officer.

15 Precinct.

Witnesses
No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.

No. _____ Street.
\$ 500 to answer 9.75

Com

BAILED,
No. 1, by _____
Residence _____ Street.
No. 2, by _____
Residence _____ Street.
No. 3, by _____
Residence _____ Street.
No. 4, by _____
Residence _____ Street.

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named Alonso Stabile guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of Five Hundred Dollars and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.
Dated November 4 1885
[Signature] Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named _____
to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.
Dated _____ 1885 . _____ Police Justice.
There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____
guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order h to be discharged.
Dated _____ 1885 . _____ Police Justice.

0884

CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, ss.

POLICE COURT, 2 DISTRICT.

Francis Woyley
of No. 15th Macinch Polici St., aged 34 years,
occupation Polici officer being duly sworn deposes and says
that on the 22nd day of October 1885
at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

Alfonso Stabile, now here, did
commit upon himself an
act dangerous to human life
in that he shot himself in
the jaw with a potato gun,
with intent to take his own
life in violation of the Law.

That he now here admits
shooting himself because he
was in love with a woman
and she did not return his

Subscribed and sworn to before me this

SS.

day

Police Justice

0885

Affection and he had no
desire to longer live.
I want to leave me this
Friday November 1885 Francis J. Kelly
Solon B. Smith
Policia

Police Court, _____ District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

vs.

AFRIDA VIT.

Dated _____ 188

Magistrate.

Officer.

Witness,

Disposition,

0006

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

Alfonso Blatte

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

Alfonso Blatte

of the CRIME OF Attempting Suicide,

committed as follows:

The said Alfonso Blatte,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the Twentyscond day of October, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with intent to take his own life, a certain pistol then and there charged and loaded with gunpowder and lead which he in his right hand then and there had and held, to, at and against himself did then and there wilfully and feloniously shoot off and discharge, the same being an act dangerous to human life, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the said People.

Randolph Martine

District Attorney

0887

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Stokes, John

DATE:

11/23/85



1982

0000

[Handwritten signature]

Counsel,
Filed *33* day of *Nov*, 188*8*
Pleads *Not guilty* - *138*

POOL SELLING.
[Section 851, Penal Code].

THE PEOPLE

vs.

B

Edmond Sanders
[Handwritten signature]

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,

District Attorney.

Oct 30, 1888 - E.E. Fair to
bring in defendant - W.M.D.

A True Bill.

[Handwritten signature]
Oct 30 1888
Foreman.
George Gully
Nov 1 1888 (True)

Witnesses:

[Handwritten signature]

0889

STATE OF NEW YORK,
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

POLICE COURT, 2

DISTRICT.

James J. Perkins
of the 8th Precinct Police Street, being duly sworn, deposes and
says that on the 17 day of October 1885

at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

John Stokes (now here)

did unlawfully sell deponent for the
sum of Five Dollars a pool upon
the result of a race or contest of
speed between beasts viz Horses and
Mares at a race track situated
in the City of Baltimore State of
Maryland. That said defendant
for said sum of money by him
defendant received from deponent
requested requested said deponent
to register his name on a slip
of paper which hung on the
wall in no 2 Murray street
where he sold said Pool
in said trial of speed as
aforesaid That he paid said
sum of money for the horse called
Greenfield which is to run with
divers other horses in said Race at
said City of Baltimore State of
Maryland in a trial of speed
to take place on October 17th 1885

James J. Perkins

Sworn to before me

This 17th day of Oct 1885

Samuel C. Kelly Police Justice

0890

Sec. 198-200

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

2

District Police Court.

John Stokes being duly examined before the under-
signed, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to
make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to
enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him
that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used
against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer.

John Stokes

Question. How old are you?

Answer.

32 years

Question. Where were you born?

Answer.

New York City

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer.

100 W 28th St 4 years

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer.

Clerk

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the
testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your
exculpation?

Answer.

I am not guilty and demand
a trial by jury

John Stokes

Taken before me this

day of

Oct 17

1888

Samuel W. Kelly

Police Justice.

0891

to appear by me by the written depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named defendant

guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of 5 Hundred Dollars and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated Oct 17 1885 Sam'l C. Kelly Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named defendant to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated Oct 17 1885 Sam'l C. Kelly Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0892

Police Court

2

1137 District.

THE PEOPLE, &c,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

James Perkins
vs. *John Stokes*

Offence *Hydromancy*

2
3
4

BAILED,

No. 1, by *Wm a De Guere*
Residence *304 Broadway* Street.

No. 2, by ~~.....~~
N. Y. Life Ins Co
Residence *Spanish* Street.

No. 3, by
Residence Street

No. 4, by
Residence Street.

Date *Oct 17* 1885

D O Reilly Magistrate.
Perkins 7th Prec Officer.
49 Precinct.

Witnesses
No. Street.

No. Street.

No. Street.
\$ *500* to answer *4* \$

Bailed

0893

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

against

John Stadaer

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment, accuse

John Stadaer

of the CRIME OF RECORDING AND REGISTERING A BET AND WAGER, committed as follows :

The said John Stadaer,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the ~~seventeenth~~ day of ~~October~~, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-~~five~~, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, did unlawfully record and register, and cause to be recorded and registered, a certain bet and wager, then and there made by and between ~~James D. Perkins and a certain other person or persons to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown~~ upon the result of a certain trial and contest of speed and power of endurance of and between ~~divers~~ horses (a more particular description whereof, and of each of them, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown) thereafter to be had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at a certain place and race track situated at ~~the City of Baltimore,~~ in the County of ~~Baltimore~~ in the State of ~~Maryland,~~ and commonly called the ~~Race Track,~~ and which said trial and contest was had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the place and race track aforesaid (a more particular description of which said trial and contest, and of the said bet and wager so as aforesaid then and there made upon the same, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, and cannot now be given), against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

Second Count.—And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said John Stadaer

of the CRIME OF RECORDING AND REGISTERING BETS AND WAGERS, committed as follows :

0894

The said *John Stokes,*

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms did unlawfully record and register, and cause to be recorded and registered, divers bets and divers wagers then and there made by and between divers persons to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown (a more particular description of which said bets and wagers is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown), upon the result of divers trials and contests of speed and power of endurance of and between divers horses (a more particular description whereof, and of each of them, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown) thereafter to be had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at a certain place and race track situated at *the City of Baltimore* in the County of *Baltimore* in the State of *Maryland* and commonly called the *Race Track,*

and which said trials and contests were had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the place and race track aforesaid (a more particular description of which said trials and contests is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown), against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

Third Count.—And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said *John Stokes,*

of the CRIME OF SELLING A POOL upon the result of a trial and contest of speed and power of endurance of horses, committed as follows:

The said *John Stokes,*

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, did unlawfully sell, and cause to be sold, to one *James J. Perkins,*

a certain pool upon the result of a certain trial and contest of speed and power of endurance of and between *divers* horses (a more particular description whereof, and of each of them, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown) thereafter to be had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at a certain place and race track situated at *the City of Baltimore* in the County of *Baltimore* in the State of *Maryland* and commonly called the *Race Track,*

0095

and which said trial and contest was had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid at the place and race track aforesaid (a more particular description of which said trial and contest, and of the pool upon the same so as aforesaid then and there sold, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, and cannot now be given), against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

Fourth Count.—And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said *John Stokes*

of the CRIME OF SELLING POOLS upon the result of trials and contests of speed and power of endurance of horses, committed as follows :

The said *John Stokes*

late of the Ward, City and County aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, with force and arms, did unlawfully sell and cause to be sold to divers persons to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, divers pools upon the result of divers trials and contests of speed and power of endurance of and between divers horses (a more particular description whereof, and of each of them, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown), thereafter to be had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at a certain place and race track situated at *the City of Baltimore* in the County of *Baltimore*, in the State of *Maryland* and commonly called the *Race Track*.

and which said trials and contests were had, holden and run on the day and in the year aforesaid, at the place and race track aforesaid (a more particular description of which said trials and contests, and of the pools aforesaid upon the same, is to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, and cannot now be given), against the form of the statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

RANDOLPH B. MARTINE,
District Attorney.

0896

BOX:

197

FOLDER:

1982

DESCRIPTION:

Sullivan, Daniel

DATE:

11/16/85



1982

0897

157
Day of Trial, *Apr 2/88*
Counsel, *W. H. ...*
Filed *16* day of *Nov* 188*8*
Pleads *Att. ...*

THE PEOPLE
vs.
B
David ...
46 Pearl St.

Randolph ...
Mr. ... District Attorney.
Bail forfeited ...
A True Bill.
J. ...
Foreman.

W. H. ...

0898

Sec. 198-200

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss.

1 District Police Court.

Daniel Sullivan being duly examined before the undersigned, according to law, on the annexed charge: and being informed that it is his right to make a statement in relation to the charge against him; that the statement is designed to enable him if he see fit to answer the charge and explain the facts alleged against him that he is at liberty to waive making a statement, and that his waiver cannot be used against him on the trial.

Question. What is your name?

Answer. *Daniel Sullivan*

Question. How old are you?

Answer. *25 years*

Question. Where were you born?

Answer. *Ireland*

Question. Where do you live, and how long have you resided there?

Answer. *69 Park St. 3 years*

Question. What is your business or profession?

Answer. *Bartender*

Question. Give any explanation you may think proper of the circumstances appearing in the testimony against you, and state any facts which you think will tend to your exculpation?

Answer. *I am not guilty. I demand a trial by jury.*
Daniel Sullivan

Taken before me this

18

day of

Jan
1887

John Patterson
Police Justice.

0899

STATE OF NEW YORK,
CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK, } ss.

POLICE COURT, 1 DISTRICT.

Patrick John Haugh

of *6 Precinct Police* Street, being duly sworn, deposes and

says that on the _____ day of _____ 188

at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

Daniel Sullivan (now here) in the person named as John Doe in the annexed affidavit of deponents

Patrick Haugh

Sworn to before me, this _____ day

of

January 5 1885

_____ day

John J. ... Police Justice.

0900

Sec. 151.

Police Court 1st District.

CITY AND COUNTY }
OF NEW YORK, } ss. *In the name of the People of the State of New York; To the Sheriff of the County of New York, or to any Marshal or Policeman of the City of New York, GREETING :*

Whereas, Complaint in writing, and upon oath has been made before the undersigned, one of the Police Justices for the City of New York, by Patrick Haugh of No. 6 Precinct Police Street, that on the 17 day of January 1880 at the City of New York, in the County of New York,

John Doe did between the hours of one and five o'clock in the morning of said day sell strong and spirituous liquors in quantities less than five gallons at a time at premises No. 468 Pearl St a license place

Wherefore, the said Complainant has prayed that the said Defendant may be apprehended and bound to answer the said complaint.

These are, Therefore, in the name of the PEOPLE of the State of New York, to command you the said Sheriff, Marshals and Policemen, and each and every of you, to apprehend the said Defendant, and bring him forthwith before me, at the 1st District Police Court, in the said City, or in case of my absence or inability to act, before the nearest or most accessible Police Justice in this City, to answer the said charge, and to be dealt with according to law.

Dated at the City of New York, this 17 day of January 1880
J. W. Patterson POLICE JUSTICE.

2

0901

Police Court _____ District.

REMARKS.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

vs

Warrant-General.

Time of Arrest, _____

Native of _____

Age, _____

Sex, _____

Complexion, _____

Color, _____

Profession, _____

Married, _____

Single, _____

Read, _____

Write, _____

Dated _____ 188

Magistrate.

Officer.

The Defendant Daniel Sullivan
taken, and brought before the Magistrate, to answer
the within charge, pursuant to the command con-
tained in this Warrant.

Patrick Haugh, Officer.

Dated 18 January 1885

This Warrant may be executed on Sunday or at
night.

M. Patton Police Justice.

0902

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named Daniel Sullivan

guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of one Hundred Dollars, and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated 18 Jan 1885 J. M. Patterson Police Justice.

I have admitted the above-named defendant to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated 18 Jan 1885 J. M. Patterson Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named _____ guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order h to be discharged.

Dated _____ 188 _____ Police Justice.

0903

BAILED,

No. 1, by

John Kalnaw
3 Mulberry Street.

Residence

No. 2, by

Residence

Street.

No. 3, by

Residence

Street.

No. 4, by

Residence

Street.

Police Court

49 District.

THE PEOPLE, &c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

Patrick Haugh
6 Prec.

1 Daniel Sullivan

2
3
4

Offence Violation
Special Law

Dated

18 January 1885
Jacob M. Patterson Magistrate.

Patrick Haugh Officer.

6 Precinct.

Witnesses

No.

Street.

No.

Street,

No.

Street.

\$

100

to answer

Sessions.

Bailed

0904

Excise Violation—Selling After Hours.

POLICE COURT—1st DISTRICT.

City and County }
of New York, } ss.

of No. 6 Precinct Police Patrick Haugh Street,

of the City of New York, being duly sworn, deposes and says, that on the 17 day

of January 1885, in the City of New York, in the County of New York, at

No. 468 Pearl Street,

John Doe (now here)

did then and THERE EXPOSE for sale, and did sell, give away and dispose of, and cause, suffer, and permit to be sold, given away and dispose of under his direction and authority, strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, being intoxicating liquors, in quantities less than five gallons at a time, to be drunk in the house or premises aforesaid BETWEEN THE HOURS OF ONE AND FIVE O'CLOCK in the morning of said day, contrary to and in violation of the statute in such case made and provided.

WHEREFORE, deponent prays that said defendant may be arrested and dealt with according to law.

Sworn to before me, this 17 day of January 1885 } Patrick Haugh

M. Patten Police Justice.

0905

w
Police Court, / District.

THE PEOPLE, & c.,
ON THE COMPLAINT OF

John Haugh

vs.

John Doe

EXCISE VIOLATION.
SELLING AFTER HOURS.

Dated *17* day of *Jan* 188*5*

Jacob M. Patterson Jr. Magistrate.

Haugh Officer.
C. M. W.

Witness,

Bailed \$ to Ans. Sessions.

By

..... Street.

It appearing to me by the within depositions and statements that the crime therein mentioned has been committed, and that there is sufficient cause to believe the within named

guilty thereof, I order that he be held to answer the same and he be admitted to bail in the sum of *Hundred Dollars* and be committed to the Warden and Keeper of the City Prison of the City of New York, until he give such bail.

Dated 188 Police Justice.

I have admitted the above named
to bail to answer by the undertaking hereto annexed.

Dated 188 Police Justice.

There being no sufficient cause to believe the within named
guilty of the offence within mentioned, I order he to be discharged.

Dated 188 Police Justice.

0906

Court of General Sessions of the Peace

OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
against

David Sullivan

The Grand Jury of the City and County of New York, by this indictment accuse

David Sullivan

of the crime of EXPOSING FOR SALE AND SELLING STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS, WINES, ALE AND BEER, AT UNLAWFUL HOURS, committed as follows:

The said *David Sullivan*,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, on the ~~present~~ *fourth* day of *January*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-*two*, being then and there in charge of, and having the control of certain premises at number

468 Pearl Street,

in the City and County aforesaid, which said place was then duly licensed as a place for the sale of strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, between the hours of one and five o'clock in the morning of said day, with force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors, and certain wines, to wit: one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, unlawfully did expose for sale and sell as a beverage to

~~and to~~ certain ~~other~~ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

0907

SECOND COUNT—

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment, further accuse the said

David Sullivan —

of the crime of GIVING AWAY AND DISPOSING OF STRONG AND SPIRITUOUS LIQUORS, WINES, ALE AND BEER, AT UNLAWFUL HOURS, committed as follows :

The said *David Sullivan* .

late of the First Ward of the City of New York, in the County of New York aforesaid, afterwards, to wit : On the said *nineteenth* day of *January*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty-*five* being then and there in charge of, and having the control of certain premises known as number *46 of Pearl Street* .

in the City and County aforesaid, which said place was then and there duly licensed as a place for the sale of strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, between the hours of one and five o'clock in the morning of said day, with force and arms, certain strong and spirituous liquors and certain wines, to wit : one gill of wine, one gill of brandy, one gill of rum, one gill of gin, one gill of whisky, one gill of cordial, one gill of bitters, one gill of ale, one gill of porter, one gill of beer, one gill of lager beer, and one gill of a certain strong and spirituous liquor to the Grand Jury aforesaid, ~~unknown~~ unlawfully did give away and dispose of as a beverage to

~~and to~~ certain ~~other~~ persons whose names are to the Grand Jury aforesaid unknown, against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York, and their dignity.

0908

THIRD COUNT—

And the Grand Jury aforesaid, by this indictment further accuse the said

Daniel Sullivan —

of the crime of KEEPING OPEN, BETWEEN THE HOURS OF ONE AND FIVE O'CLOCK IN THE MORNING, a place licensed for the sale of strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, committed as follows:

The said *Daniel Sullivan*,

late of the First Ward of the City of New York in the County of New York aforesaid, afterwards, to wit: on the said *seventeenth* day of *January*, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and eighty *seven*, being then and there in charge of and having the control of certain premises at number

468 Pearl Street. —

in the City and County aforesaid, which said place was then duly licensed as a place for the sale of strong and spirituous liquors, wines, ale and beer, with force and arms, at the Ward, City and County aforesaid, the said place so licensed as aforesaid, unlawfully did not close and keep closed between the hours of one and five o'clock in the morning of said day, and between said hours of said day, to wit: at the hour of *two* o'clock in the morning of said day, the said place so licensed as aforesaid, unlawfully did then and there open and cause and procure, and suffer and permit, at the time aforesaid to be open and to remain open against the form of the Statute in such case made and provided, and against the peace of the People of the State of New York and their dignity.

John M. [Signature]
~~JOHN M. [Signature]~~ District Attorney.